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We achieved great
recognition in 2018 as
the best place to live
by remaining committed
to our principles and
addressing the priorities
of Oakville residents.”
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Message from
the Mayor
The cooperation
and effort by Oakville
residents, businesses,
town staff and
Council earned our
town the honour of
being recognized by
MoneySense Magazine
as “Canada’s Best Place
to Live” in 2018, up
from 30th 13 years ago.
MoneySense magazine
also recognized Oakville
as the best place for
New Canadians, the third best place to retire
and the fifth best place to raise a family.
In our recent 2019 Citizen Survey, 81 per cent
of Oakville residents expressed satisfaction
with their municipal government and 96 per
cent were satisfied with town services. The
survey results demonstrate that Council and
town staff are continuing on the right track
in delivering the high-quality facilities and
services that our residents want and need.
Council has controlled growth and taxes
to only what fits environmentally and
economically, protected greenspace and
Oakville’s natural environment. We have
provided high-quality infrastructure and
facilities for residents. We have also
maintained strong and healthy finances.

These principles of livability have allowed
Council to pass budgets that hold property
tax increases to inflation and invest in new
recreational facilities, community centres
and services for residents. In 2018, 60 roads
spanning over 31 kilometres were improved
and repaired in order to improve mobility
for people and goods. The first phase of
the Lakeshore Road Reconstruction and
Streetscape project is underway and will
transform downtown Oakville. The Oakville
Fire department opened a new fire station
on Kerr Street to improve response times.
Infrastructure repairs and restoration projects
took place across Oakville and at our
natural harbours.
Many new companies moved operations to
Oakville bringing more than 1,600 new jobs
while existing companies invested in facility
expansions and new hires in 2018.
Our strong and stable finances along with
the town’s excellent credit rating gave Council
the ability to deliver an efficient and affordable
budget this year.
We achieved great recognition in 2018 as the
best place to live by remaining committed to
our principles and addressing the priorities
of Oakville residents. We will continue to do
so together, as a city that calls itself a town
and feels like a village.

Mayor Rob Burton, BA, MS
Head of Council and CEO

05

06

2018 Town of Oakville Annual Report

2018–2022 Town Council
Ward 2

Ward 1

Council’s current term began on December 1, 2018, and will end November 30, 2022

Beth Robertson

Sean O’Meara

Ray Chisholm

Cathy Duddeck

Peter Longo

Allan Elgar

Town Councillor

Regional and
Town Councillor

Ward 4

Regional and
Town Councillor

Ward 3

Town Councillor

Town Councillor

Regional and
Town Councillor

Marc Grant

Jeff Knoll

Town Councillor

Regional and
Town Councillor

Ward 6

Dave Gittings

Ward 5

Janet
Haslett-Theall

Regional and
Town Councillor

Ward 7

Town Councillor

Natalia Lishchyna Tom Adams
Town Councillor

Regional and
Town Councillor

For an interactive ward
map of Oakville visit
oakville.ca/maps.html
Jasvinder Sandhu Pavan Parmar
Town Councillor

Regional and
Town Councillor
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Organizational Chart

as of August 2019

Mayor and Council
Chief Administrative Officer
Ray Green

Strategy, Policy
and Communications
Jane Courtemanche
Director

Legal
Doug Carr
Town Solicitor

Corporate Services
Nancy Sully
Acting Commissioner and Treasurer
• Clerk’s
• Facilities and Construction
Management
• Finance
• Human Resources
• Information Systems

Internal Audit
Pierre Sauvageot
Director

Community Services
Colleen Bell
Commissioner
• Fire Services
• Oakville Public Library
• Oakville Transit
• Parks and Open Space
• Recreation and Culture
• Roads and Works Operations

The CAO provides leadership and
demonstrates a commitment to excellence
in the administration and management of
the Corporation of the Town of Oakville,
appropriate legal and real estate services and
advice, oversees environmental stewardship
and protection, and ensures that town services
and programs are aligned with Councilapproved policies and strategic directions.
The Community Development
commission provides expertise and advice
to help Council define the town’s vision for
tomorrow. Responsible for developing
innovative, integrated, timely and defensible
policies, projects and regulations which guide
new and existing development, corporate
improvements and community infrastructure,
this commission reviews planning, building,
development engineering and site alteration
proposals; municipal enforcement services,
stormwater management, and the
engineering and construction of
municipal public works infrastructure.

Economic
Development
Dorothy St. George
Director

Community Development
Jane Clohecy
Commissioner and Deputy CAO
• Building Services
• Development Engineering
• Engineering and Construction
• Municipal Enforcement Services
• Planning Services
• Strategic Business Support

The Corporate Services commission
provides support services to ensure fiscal
responsibility, records management,
compliance with legislation and regulations,
council support, as well as human
resources and information technology
services, to support the town’s operating
departments and local boards. The
commission is also responsible for the
management of town-owned facilities.
The Community Services commission
is responsible for fire protection and
prevention, emergency management,
parks, forestry, harbours, roads and works,
cemeteries as well as the delivery of
recreation and cultural services, and public
transit. The commission also provides
a corporate link to the Oakville Library,
Oakville Galleries and TOWARF (Town
of Oakville Water and Air Rescue Force).

We’ve long believed
in our commitment
to a livable Oakville,
and now the country
is taking notice.”
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Message from
the CAO
We’ve long believed in
our commitment to a
livable Oakville, and
now the country is
taking notice. When
MoneySense Magazine
named our town the
best place to live in
Canada 2018, it was
an event to celebrate
in a year filled with
much success.
Over the past year, we
created more diverse
and accessible spaces for residents to dream,
think and play. We opened our newest
recreational facility, the Trafalgar Park
Community Centre, began construction
of the new Southeast Community Centre,
and completed improvements on other town
facilities to improve access and functionality
for all people.
We continued to safeguard our biodiversity
and tree canopy — just two of the many
things that make our town so special —
and enhanced the services you rely on,
such as Oakville Transit’s innovative Home
to Hub.
We balanced prudent financial planning,
significant infrastructure investments,
and high-quality programs and services to
deliver what matters most while keeping
overall property tax increases in line
with inflation.

We listened, through countless consultations,
submissions, and conversations, to the
perspectives, opinions and needs of people
across our community, and leveraged
technology to gather feedback, promote
economic growth, encourage voting, and
make our transit system and libraries
more accessible.
While this report is but a snapshot of the
year that was, it reflects a year of great
progress made possible by the dedicated
staff and volunteers who tirelessly protect,
preserve and enhance our community.
Above all, it reflects our unwavering
commitment to those who live here,
in Oakville. The very best place to live.

Ray Green, P. Eng.

Chief Administrative Officer
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2015–2018
Strategic Plan
Vision: to be the most
livable town in Canada.
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Mission

Values

Strategic Plan

We create and preserve
Canada’s most livable
community that
enhances the natural,
cultural, social and
economic environments.

Accountability – We deliver what
we promised. We are accountable
of our own actions and results. We
are accountable for the efficient
and effective use of public funds.

For our mission, vision
and values to have
significant impact, they
must be accompanied
by a deliberate plan of
action.

We achieve this by
continuously improving
programs and services
that are both accessible
and environmentally
and fiscally sustainable.
We are highly valued
and widely celebrated
due to the innovative
and outstanding way
we satisfy the needs of
our residents, businesses
and employees. As a
result, the process is as
fulfilling as the outcome.
We ensure our staff
receives the same level
of respect, commitment
and caring that they are
expected to deliver to
the community.

Dedication – We willingly take on
responsibility. We are committed
to serving our community. We
take initiative and we take on our
share of the work.
Honesty – Each of us demonstrates
personal integrity, truthfulness and
honesty in how we do our job.
We inspire public confidence and
trust in our government.
Innovation – We pursue innovation
by being creative, showing initiative
and taking risks. We encourage
employees to exercise judgment
in meeting customer needs.
Respect – We value open,
respectful and inclusive governance.
We value the cultural and social
diversity of our community. We
make it possible for every resident
to participate in our community,
and in our government.
Teamwork – We act as a team.
We demonstrate high levels
of trust and cooperation. We
collaborate across departments to
achieve our goals. We work in
partnership with our community.

The town’s work plan
for 2015–2018 details
clear objectives and key
measures of success
within Council’s five
areas of focus:
1. Good governance
2. Environmental
leadership
3. Economic growth
4. Fiscal sustainability
5. Outstanding service
to residents

This page has ben intentionaly left blank.

2018 Town of Oakville Annual Report

The best
place to live.
It’s a remarkable distinction. So what makes Oakville the best place to live?
It may be how we work together to protect what matters most. Or the
way we innovate to find better ways to build and connect.
It could be our commitment to responsible development, or how we
ensure that everyone has the chance to be included. Perhaps it’s that
we invest both strategically and sustainably, so that future generations
continue to benefit from the decisions we make today.
Or it may be, quite simply, that we strive to make life better for
everyone who calls our town home. Because ultimately, it’s not one
thing that makes Oakville a great place to live.
It’s everything.

13

211,000

total population of Oakville

1,900 kilometres
roads

Uniquely
Oakville

1,590+ hectares
parkland

2

natural harbours

Oakville benefits from a unique
blend of natural spaces, growing
business and employment
opportunities, modern housing
and transportation options, and
an increasingly diverse population.
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Embracing
innovation
Finding new and better ways to work, build and connect is
at the heart of town planning. It’s a creative approach that
combines the assets of people, technology and partnerships
to generate 21st century solutions to municipal challenges.
Oakville Transit has also leveraged
technology to introduce a convenient
self-serve option that allows care-A-van and
Home to Hub customers to book, cancel
and confirm their own rides online, by phone
or through the Amble mobile app, even
on evenings and weekends. Learn more at
oakvilletransit.ca.
To encourage new investment in Oakville,
in 2018 we launched a video in English and
Mandarin that highlights the town’s high
quality of life and the creativity and talent
driving innovation in the community. Footage
was collected through local businesses,
community partners and local events. The
video has been used in digital marketing
campaigns to promote the Invest Oakville
website, in investment attraction meetings
and initiatives, and by community partners
such as Sheridan College.

Another digital resource, the Oakville
Opportunities and Investments Map,
launched last fall to provide an interactive
virtual tour of new and ongoing economic
development activities in town. Using ArcGIS
software, the map displays development
activity, infrastructure investment, and
opportunities for business growth. Check
it out at invest.oakville.ca/virtualtour.
Our commitment to innovation also compels
us to consider new ways of using existing
resources. Last summer, Council asked
interested parties to submit creative ideas,
solutions, designs and development models
for senior-oriented housing at the Former
Hospital Site. In 2020 staff will use these
submissions and issue a Request for Proposal
for development.
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Pedestrian crossovers require drivers and
cyclists to stop and wait while pedestrians
cross the entire width of the road.

One important way we engage and connect
with residents is by using technology. To
encourage citizens to vote, in 2018 Oakville
introduced an online voter lookup tool that
allowed users to check for their names on,
or add their names to, the voter list. The
town also provided real-time election results
online once the voting locations closed.
With the expanded number of wards (from
six to seven), the 2018 municipal election
resulted in two additional council seats,
increasing the size of Town Council to 14
members plus the mayor. A number of
new faces were elected, with 66 per cent
of incumbent councillors and Mayor Rob
Burton returning for a new term.

Proving that innovation takes many forms,
we’ve improved active transportation in
Oakville and made it easier for pedestrians
to get where they want to go more quickly,
safely and easily with the installation of
several pedestrian crossovers (PXOs). A PXO
is a new type of crossing where drivers
and cyclists are required to stop and wait
while pedestrians cross the entire width
of the road. PXOs allow for safer and
easier connections to parks, trails, schools
and transit stops. Our Pedestrian Safety
Program recommends more than 170 PXO
installations over the next 10 to 15 years.
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Developing
responsibly
How Oakville develops as a community is as
important as what is built. Council and staff
carefully consider development options and
engage with residents and businesses to ensure
that Oakville continues to be a place where
everyone has an opportunity to thrive.

A new Brownfield Community Improvement Plan was
developed to encourage private sector reinvestment in
brownfields that will bring environmental, economic
and social benefits to the community. Brownfields are
abandoned or underused properties with known or
suspected environmental contamination, but potential
for redevelopment. The new plan offers three financial
incentive programs to support the redevelopment and
clean-up of these sites: an Environmental Study Grant
Program, a Tax Increment Grant Program and a Tax
Assistance Program.
After a town-wide Employment and Commercial Review
assessed the lands designated to meet our long-term needs,
the Speers Road Corridor Study further identified suitable
long-term land uses and intensification opportunities that
support the corridor’s primary function as an Employment
Area. The two official plan amendments adopted to
update related policies in the Livable Oakville plan are
currently being considered for approval by Halton Region.
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When considering development, we are
mindful that new residential and industrial/
commercial properties require new town
infrastructure and services such as roads,
transit, sidewalks and streetlights. Council
believes that these growth-related capital
costs should be paid by property developers,
not taxpayers.
The 2018 Development Charges Background
Study determined that more than $199
million in net costs would need to be
recovered through development charges
over the next five years in order to finance
planned residential and non-residential
growth infrastructure. As a result, Council
passed a new Development Charge By-law
which increased the residential development
charge by 27 per cent (on average, depending
on the unit type). The non-residential
development charge decreased by three
per cent.
In May 2019, the town raised concerns
with the province’s Bill 108 – the Proposed
More Homes, More Choice Act, 2019 as
it would change our ability in how the
town collects development charges and
shift a significant amount of costs from
the developers to existing and future
residential taxpayers.
Community growth also requires practical,
sustainable and long-term transit plans
that ensure we can meet our anticipated
future needs. In 2018 a review of Switching
Gears, Oakville’s Transportation Master Plan,
was approved to guide our future transit
development. The plan sets transportation
priorities to 2031 and incorporates
transportation, land use planning and
financial strategy which respect the social,
environmental and economic goals of the
Livable Oakville plan, Halton’s Official Plan
and Transportation Master Plan, and other
provincial strategies.

3 financial
incentive programs
to support brownfield
redevelopment

$199 million+

must be recovered through
development charges
over the next five years to
finance planned residential
and non-residential growth
infrastructure

2,407
building permits
were issued in 2018
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Maintaining fiscal
sustainability
Council’s strong stewardship of town resources continues
to result in overall tax increases in line with inflation, highquality programs and services, and strong investment in
infrastructure and facilities.
Each year, the town’s budget is one of
the most important tasks facing Council
as it balances strategic investments in our
community with responsible taxation. In
2018, Council again met its commitment
to keep total property tax increases in
line with inflation while providing the
programs, services and infrastructure
support residents expect.
The 2018 Budget included almost $324
million in operating costs and more than
$129 million for capital projects. This was
reflected in a 2.58 per cent increase to
the town’s portion of the tax bill, creating
an overall property tax increase of only
1.75 per cent including regional and
educational tax levies. Key 2018 budget
pressures included the higher minimum
wage requirement in Ontario, growth-related
expenses including increased transit costs,

new parks and roads maintenance, and
the operation of the new Trafalgar Park
Community Centre and a new library.
Taking into account continued growthrelated costs in future years, Council also
directed staff to keep overall property
tax increases in line with inflation in both
2019 and 2020. The approved 2019 Budget
sees a 1.99 per cent increase to the town’s
budget, for an overall property tax increase
of 1.53 per cent when combined with the
expected regional increase and estimated
educational tax rates.
In 2019, a $337.3 million operating budget
will provide a wide range of programs
and services including road and facility
maintenance, fire services, transit, parks
and trails, recreation and culture, senior
services and libraries, along with a variety of

21
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$2.1 million
savings

anticipated through
2019 efficiency
review work

1.75 per cent

overall property tax
increase for 2019—
in line with inflation
for 2019 and 2020.

other valued amenities. As part of the
town’s goal for continuous improvement
and improved efficiency, it is anticipated
that $2.1 million in savings will be realized
through efficiency review work to be
undertaken in 2019.
Going forward, Council remains committed
to keeping Oakville’s finances healthy
and stable while building and renewing
community infrastructure over the long
term. These capital projects are funded
through a variety of sources including
property taxes, town reserves, development
charges and external sources such as the
gas tax. The approved capital budget forecast
for 2018–2027 totaled $1.25 billion, with
growth-related projects accounting for half
of the total 10-year budget. Additional
expense categories include infrastructure
renewal, strategic priorities, community
enhancements and enterprise initiatives.
The 2019 capital budget includes
$116.3 million in funding earmarked for
transportation, infrastructure renewal and
other elements related to growth. Key
capital projects include the Lakeshore Road
Reconstruction and Streetscape project,

50 per cent
projected
capital budget
expenditures
will be growthrelated projects

the ongoing construction of the South East
Community Centre, the start of construction
of Fire Station 8 in the Palermo area and
reconstruction of Speers Road west of
Third Line to Fourth Line. Also included in
the 2019 Budget is funding to continue
the town’s annual Road Resurfacing Program
and Emerald Ash Borer Management and
Tree Renewal Programs.
As our town evolves, we continue to
explore opportunities to further strengthen
and diversify our local economy. To support
growth in the tourism sector and increase
tourism’s economic impact in Oakville,
Council approved a new four per cent
Municipal Accommodation Tax starting in
January 2019. In addition, and through
federal support from the Invest Canada —
Community Initiatives fund, research is
underway on a new Economic Development
Strategy that will guide work plans and
priorities for the next five years (2019–2024)
through extensive research, analysis and
stakeholder engagement.

Oakville residents enjoying our trails

23

Protecting
what matters
Understanding what matters to citizens is critical
to effective government. Listening to your concerns
about protecting Oakville’s heritage and iconic
features, and the impact of development on natural
areas, ensured that public input helped guide several
major Council decisions.

A new Downtown Mitigation Strategy will address the
economic impact of the Lakeshore Road Streetscape Project
in the Downtown Oakville commercial district. The strategy
includes economic measures, such as free Saturday parking, to
mitigate the impact of construction on business. A marketing
and communications plan including temporary wayfinding
signs and a project office in the district has been developed
to keep businesses, residents and visitors informed.
Of course, modifying our built environment also requires
consideration of our natural one. Our updated Environmental
Sustainability Strategy reflects our successes to date and sets
out new actions to 2022. The update draws from a series
of stakeholder and community interviews, the results of the
Community Attitudes Survey, other prior consultation work
related to the environment, and the actions set out in the
town’s other master plans. A key theme of the strategy is
the addition of “transformational priorities” that will help
focus the work of the town and its partners over the next
five years. These priorities are climate change preparedness,
reducing our ecological footprint and transitioning towards
smart cities. We will share our progress on the Livable
Oakville Performance Dashboard at oakville.ca.
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The weather in recent years has taught
us to expect the unexpected, and Council
approved almost $3.8 million for priority
restoration projects to address the significant
flood damage to Oakville’s shoreline and
lakeside parks due to high lake levels the
2017. Restoration took place in Bronte
Harbour, Coronation Park, Dingle Park,
Lakeside Park, Carrington Promenade,
Gairloch Gardens and along Sixteen Mile
Creek. Numerous infrastructure repairs
were also completed at both Bronte and
Oakville harbours.
We’re fortunate to live in one of the most
biodiverse areas in Ontario, with over 900
different species of plants and more than
300 varieties of birds, amphibians and
reptiles, mammals and fish. To address the
risks presented by biodiversity loss, we’ve
developed a new strategy that provides a
framework for decision-making and actions
related to protecting, restoring and
enhancing our natural assets. The Oakville
Strategy for Biodiversity pulls together
existing policies, programs and initiatives
that are already in place and provides a
strategy to move the town forward and
act collectively with its partners.
Our commitment to the natural environment
also extends to the health of our urban forest
and tree canopy. As of the last assessment
in 2016, we had nearly 28 per cent canopy
coverage. In 2018, more than 36,000 trees
and shrubs were planted in areas heavily
devastated by Emerald Ash Borer. To ensure
planting success in these sites, invasive
plants such as buckthorn, Japanese knotweed
and dog-strangling vine are being managed
on over 40 hectares of woodlands. With
help from the community through activities
such as the PLANT (Please Let’s Add New
Trees) initiative, we’re on our way to reaching
our 40 per cent canopy coverage goal!

In addition, this year we successfully
completed an aerial spray program in
town woodlands to manage a gypsy moth
and cankerworm infestation that, if left
untreated, had the potential to severely
impact 409,000 trees (about 23 per cent
of the town’s tree canopy). After severe
or repeated infestation by gypsy moths or
cankerworms, trees can die or become so
weak that they are vulnerable to other
pests and diseases. Our aerial spray program
successfully reduced the potential damage
to acceptable levels for 2018.

900+

different species of plants

300+

varieties of birds, amphibians
and reptiles, mammals and fish

Oakville is one of
the most biodiverse
areas in Ontario

36,000+

trees and shrubs planted
in areas devastated by
Emerald Ash Borer

$3.8 million

to address significant
flood damage
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Creating
opportunities
Opportunities for civic engagement, economic prosperity
and lifelong participation in diverse and accessible recreation
and cultural activities help to create a sense of belonging
in Oakville. We’re making sure everyone has a chance to be
included and heard on matters that affect our community.
To help people with cognitive disabilities
become confident and independent users
of our transit system and libraries, we
partnered with Magnusmode to create
two new free “MagnusCards” apps. These
downloadable card decks combine stepby-step instructions with game design to
help transit users understand how to pay
fares, use the Presto system, ride and
transfer buses, plan a trip, stay safe and get
help when needed. Find the Oakville Transit
app under the MagnusCards travel section.
Similarly, the Oakville Public Library app
promotes library access for everyone in
the community and explains how to use
the library, get a library card, and check
out the many materials available. And to
further encourage creativity, collaboration

and discovery for people of all ages and
abilities, the Oakville Public Library’s White
Oaks branch reopened in September with
a larger lounge area, additional seating,
added workspaces, new carpets and fresh
paint. Check out the changes at 1070
McCraney Street East.
If you’d prefer to get outside but aren’t
sure if you can manage the terrain, a new
online tool makes it easy to plan your visit
to a local park. This interactive map displays
the accessible features of Oakville’s parks,
playgrounds, on- and off-street parking
and recreation trails. You can even get
information on the type of surface, trail
width and degree of slope you’ll encounter!
Access it online at oakville.ca.
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Two free apps are
now available to
help people with
cognitive disabilities
become confident,
independent users
of Oakville’s public
transit system and
libraries. Download
the MagnusCards app
from your app store.

Looking for a different type of experience?
Cultural activities abound here, and we
were pleased to host a Chinese New Year
Reception last February in partnership with
the Oakville Chinese Business Association
and the Oakville Chinese Network. The
event featured performances, music and
a traditional Lion Dance that was enjoyed
by more than 600 guests. Our Economic
Development department also hosted
a reception for two local artists who
represented Oakville in a delegation to
Pengzhou, China, as part of our ongoing
International Sister Cities initiatives.
If you’re driving downtown, you’ll notice
some one-way streets have been converted
to allow for two-way traffic as part of a
plan revitalize this historic district. We also
began to engage the public and other
stakeholders about design ideas for the
2019 redevelopment of Towne Square.
A Downtown Plan project office located
in the former post office at 193 Church
Street is acting as an information hub for

the revitalization projects, including the
reconstruction of Lakeshore Road starting
in April 2019.
An opportunity for homeowners as well
as visitors, short-term accommodations
are now allowed within a variety of
residential areas in Oakville. These are
rentals that occur over a short period of
time and are often facilitated by popular
online platforms such as Airbnb, Flipkey
and Homeaway. To operate a short-term
accommodation, homeowners must provide
a certificate of occupancy and purchase
a license annually. Accommodation must
be in the principal residence and include
an off-street parking space. Rental units
cannot be in the same dwelling as a bed
and breakfast establishment, lodging
house, private home daycare or daycare.
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Residents watch The Hockey Circus Show at the
Trafalgar Park Community Centre grand opening
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Making
life better
Saving you time, providing great service, creating
opportunities for active living and helping you stay
safe are just a few of the ways we’re making life
better in Oakville.

The Kerr Village community is home to our newest recreational
facility — the Trafalgar Park Community Centre, located at
133 Rebecca Street. The 65,000 square-foot facility is a
redevelopment of the former Oakville Arena, built in 1951.
As requested by the community, we’ve maintained the original
arena’s distinctive wooden roof trusses as a heritage feature.
The new centre includes an NHL-size ice surface, public meeting
space, fitness centre, full-size gymnasium, indoor walking track,
and fully accessible outdoor playground and tennis courts
that will be converted into an artificial outdoor rink in the
winter. The Older Adult Centre replaced the former Oakville
Seniors Centre on Kerr Street.
Across town, construction of the new Southeast Community
Centre is also now underway. We’re building a LEED certified,
energy-efficient building with a modern design that respects
the adjacent heritage district and the designated high school.
The recreation facility will have a 25-metre lap pool, warm water
pool, double gymnasium, fitness centre with a running track,
multipurpose meeting rooms, and space for intergenerational
programming. The outdoor park will include soft landscaping
and trees, seating, a play structure, lawn areas, a water play
area, pavilion and bicycle parking. The centre is expected to
open in fall 2020.
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Queen Elizabeth Park Community and
Cultural Centre has a new state-of-the-art
community kitchen, thanks to funding
received through an Ontario150 Community
Capital grant. The commercial-grade kitchen
provides a venue for cooking and nutrition
programs for all ages, and will be available
for special programs, summer camps,
community programs and events.
The Oakville Fire department also opened
its newest facility in 2018. Fire Station #3,
formally at 125 Randall Street, is now
located in a more accessible and visible
location at 168 Kerr Street, next door
to the new Trafalgar Park Community
Centre. The station has four drive-thru
bays housing a fire pumper, a 100-foot
platform truck, an incident command
vehicle and a platoon chief’s response
vehicle, as well as space for an additional
heavy rescue truck in the future. Visit the
station’s multimedia education centre
to view curated museum pieces on the
history of the Oakville Fire department
and check out the vintage pumper truck.
Helping people safely and conveniently
navigate our town is another way we make
life better, and numerous projects began
last year to make getting around even
easier. These include the reconstruction/
urbanization of Cornwall Road between
Chartwell Road and Morrison Road;
reconstruction of Bridge Road between
Fourth Line and Warminster Drive;
construction of several new pedestrian
crossovers; the launch of Environmental
Assessments for the reconstruction of
Wyecroft Road and Lakeshore Road West;
and implementation of numerous traffic
calming measures.

In 2018, more than 60 roads spanning
over 31 kilometres were improved and
repaired as part of the town’s annual road
resurfacing program. Localized repairs were
also made to both curbs and sidewalks,
and it’s not just drivers and walkers who
benefited from improvements; transit users
also found travel more convenient with the
expansion of Home to Hub, an on-request
Oakville Transit service, which is now
serving the newer communities of North
Oakville and Southeast Oakville. The service
conveniently picks up and drops off riders
at the end of their driveways to get them
to and from the closest transit hub (Uptown
Core Terminal, Oakville GO station or
Downtown Oakville), where they can connect
with conventional transit service. Home to
Hub is a shared service that uses smaller
capacity buses and is available weekdays
between 6 to 10 a.m. and 3 to 7 p.m.,
with late evening service available in
some areas. For more information, visit
oakvilletransit.ca.

41.7 years
median age

31 per cent
belong to a
visible minority

About our
residents

24 per cent

have a disability

36 per cent
immigrated
to Canada

White Pine Dancers from Culture Days 2018
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Rising above
2018 awards and recognition

We’re proud of the town staff, projects and programs
that were recognized for their excellence in innovation,
leadership and dedication to the Oakville community.

• Canada’s Best Place to Live – MoneySense Magazine
• Award for Financial Reporting, Government Finance Officers
Association
• Parks and Recreation Ontario (PRO) Awards, Honourable Mention
for Park or Facility Design for Trafalgar Park Community Centre
• Parks and Recreation Ontario (PRO) Awards, Emerging Leader
Award – Anna Rookyard
• 2018 Top Ten Cities and Towns for Culture Days (5th place overall)
• Halton District School Board Inspire Award – Edna Hunter
• Canada’s Favourite Crossing Guard Contest – Darnley Lewis
• Government Standard of Excellence Award – Outstanding
Achievement, Web Marketing Association
• Oakville Beaver Readers’ Choice Awards – Diamond Award for
Best Live Theatre, Oakville Centre for the Performing Arts
• 2018 Award of Excellence –
Promotional Award, Economic
Developers Council of Ontario
• Canadian Public Relations Society
Hamilton Gold Pinnacle Award –
2018 Canada Day Celebration
• Festivals and Events Ontario Top 100
Festival or Event – Oakville Children’s
Festival
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Report from
Finance
The 2018 Consolidated Financial Statements attest to the Town
of Oakville’s continued solid financial position which positions the
town to face future economic and growth challenges.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada. The town’s external auditors, KPMG, LLP, have examined the
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and have expressed the unqualified, or “clean”, opinion that they
present fairly the financial position and the financial results of the town
as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018.
The financial statements include the statement of financial position and the
statements of operations, change in net financial assets, and cash flows.
Together, these statements report the town’s assets and liabilities, how
the town generated revenues, financed activities, and used resources, and
how this compared to the approved budgets. The notes to the financial
statements provide supporting information for users as to the 2018 financial
results. Examples of such information include reserves and reserve funds,
tangible capital assets, and the town’s ownership interest in the local
electricity company.
The financial statements are consolidated, reflecting the combined
operations of the town, Oakville Public Library, Oakville Galleries and
the town’s three business improvement areas (Downtown Oakville, Kerr
Village, and Bronte). The financial statements also include the town’s
investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation (OEC), formerly Oakville
Hydro. This investment is included using the modified equity method of
accounting; this method recognizes the town’s share of the annual income
or loss of OEC in the statement of operations, with a corresponding
increase or decrease in the investment balance on the town’s statement
of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position
The Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, which is the municipal equivalent of
the balance sheet, includes two key metrics –
net financial assets and accumulated surplus.
Net financial assets represent the difference
between the town’s financial assets (ex. cash,
receivables, investments) and its liabilities
(ex. accounts payable, deferred revenues,
debt). The town continues to maintain a
strong net financial asset position, with
financial assets exceeding liabilities by $315
million. This represents a nearly $9 million
increase over the prior year.
Consolidated Statement of Operations
The Consolidated Statement of Operations
is the municipal equivalent of the income
statement. This statement presents the sources
of revenues and the uses and allocations
of the town’s financial resources throughout
the reporting period. It reflects the combined
results of the operating fund, non-asset
related capital projects, and the reserve
and reserve funds; in addition, it includes
relevant revenues and expenses from the
local boards.
While revenues in 2018 appear to have
dropped by $19 million compared to the
prior year, this is due to $65 million less
in contributed tangible capital assets from
developers. Adjusting for this amount,
revenues have actually increased by $46
million from 2017 to 2018. Taxation revenue
($12 million) and development charges
recognized ($28 million) were the two biggest
increases year over year.
Expenses also rose in 2018, by almost $22
million, most of which is attributed to
General government and Recreation and
cultural services.
The town’s surplus for 2018 was $60 million.
As a result, the town’s accumulated surplus
is now just under $2.0 billion. It is important
to note that accumulated surplus cannot
be construed as “cash” or “funds” available

for spending, as the majority of this surplus
is for non-financial assets which are not
available to discharge existing liabilities;
rather, these assets are used in the provision
of town services.
As these financial statements are presented
in accordance with PSAB standards, the
annual surplus does not include expenses
relating to the acquisition of tangible capital
assets, nor does it reflect the principal
repayment of long-term debt or the receipt
of debt proceeds. However, it does reflect
the use of assets in service through an
amortization expense.
The Statement of Operations also reports
the current year results against the current
year budgets approved by Council. For PSAB
purposes, components of the approved
budgets are not included, such as reserve
and reserve fund transfers, capital expenses
relating to the acquisitions of tangible
capital assets, and debt principal payments.
In addition, certain expenses, such as
amortization expense (2017 – $44 million),
are un-budgeted as annual budgets are
prepared predominantly on a “cash” basis
for purposes of calculating the tax levy.
Consolidated Statement of Change
in Net Financial Assets
The Consolidated Statement of Change in
Net Financial Assets is intended to provide
the user of the financial statements with
an explanation of the difference between
the surplus and the change in net financial
assets. More specifically, it provides detailed
information on the use or acquisition of
non-financial assets and their impact on
the net financial position.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
displays the impact that all transactions
have on the town’s cash position. It reconciles
the annual surplus to the cash balance
reported on the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position. It highlights the use
or provision of cash for operating, capital,
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investing, and financing activities, allowing a
user to see the reasons for the change in cash.
Trust Funds
The town also administers trust funds, which
are not consolidated with the town’s financial
statements. These funds undergo a separate
audit and their financial statements are also
approved by Council. The most significant
of these funds relate to perpetual care funds
held under the Cemetery Act.
Conclusion
The Town of Oakville continues to maintain
a strong financial position due to sound
financial management and forward thinking
strategies. As with most municipalities in
Ontario, providing services to a growing
community, combined with demand for
new and enhanced services and the need for
asset replacements and renewals, continues
to place pressure on the town’s finances
while the town strives to maintain reasonable
and competitive tax rates in line with inflation.
The town is continuing to implement a
comprehensive asset management program.
In 2010, staff began utilizing the asset
register as the base for the town’s ten-year
financial infrastructure renewal forecast,
which allows the town to evaluate
infrastructure investments in light of their
impact on future budgets. This tool provides
the town with the information it needs to
develop a sustainable financing plan for
infrastructure renewal, as well as allow the
town to evaluate the impact of development
charge funding and to make necessary
modifications to the timing of growth
related capital projects.

Nancy Sully
Treasurer and Director of Finance

Dated: May 27, 2019

Part of the asset management program
involved the design of an Asset Management
Plan (AMP). This is a comprehensive
document to guide decision making in
regards to the construction, operation,
maintenance, replacement, expansion,
and disposal of the town’s assets while
minimizing risk and costs and maximizing
service delivery.
The town uses Performance Based Program
Based budgeting (PB2) methodology to
prepare multi-year operating budgets that
focus on programs and services, ensuring
they are delivered in a fiscally sustainable
manner. Funding is allocated based on
the goals and objectives to be achieved by
each program. Performance Measures are
a key component of PB2 and have been
developed for each program to show the
five-year trend for key outcomes based on
the approved budget.
There are many contributors to the town’s
success and achievements. Thank you to
Town Council, commissioners, department
heads, and town staff across the organization
for their efforts in ensuring the town remains
in a strong financial position. We would
especially like to thank the staff in the
town’s Finance department. This group of
professionals is dedicated and committed
to ensuring the town’s financial affairs are
handled responsibly and they do so by
acting with integrity and consistently
going the extra mile.

Jonathan van der Heiden
Deputy Treasurer and
Manager of Accounting
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Comprehensive Financial Management
and Planning Policies
Overview
The management of the Corporation of
the Town of Oakville is responsible for
the integrity, objectivity, and accuracy of
the financial information presented in the
financial statements.
In order to meet its responsibility for
presenting accurate information, management
maintains comprehensive financial and
internal control systems. These systems are
designed to ensure the safeguarding of
assets and the integrity of the financial data.
The control systems provide an organizational
structure, which segregates responsibility,
employs qualified professional staff, and
develops and maintains corporate policies
and procedures.
Financial management
The Town of Oakville completes its financial
reporting in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles for
governments as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of
the Chartered Professional Accountants
of Canada and prescribed policies issued
by the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing. The town’s revenues and expenses
are recorded using the accrual basis of
accounting. This basis recognizes revenues as
they are earned and measurable and expenses
as they are incurred and measurable as the
result of the receipt of goods or services
and the creation of a legal obligation.
While the town’s budget is also prepared on
an accrual basis, there are some differences
from how the financial statements are
prepared. In municipal financial operations,
monies raised or supplied for a specific
purpose cannot be used for any other
purpose, either due to legal restrictions and/or
contractual agreements. To track and show

that the funds have been used for their
intended purpose fund accounting is used.
The funds used by the town are the operating
fund, capital fund, reserve funds, and trust
funds. These funds are used for budget
purposes and for day-to-day financial
management. The financial statements are
fully compliant with PSAB and are therefore
not presented by fund.
Financial stability of the town is an important
element of financial management. To
ensure the town’s finances remain stable,
management looks forward and prepares
for future needs by assessing legislative
changes, the impact of growth, and changes
in the economic climate with the goal of
minimizing annual fluctuations to the amount
of taxes that are required.
Financial policies
The following financial policies establish
the framework for the town’s overall fiscal
planning and management. The success of
the town’s budget process rests on a solid
foundation of budget principles. These
principles may be summarized as follows:
Strategic Plans
Council’s Strategic Plan, the town’s Official
Plan, management’s leadership plan, and
various master plans serve as the guiding
documents under which all town initiatives
are aligned. The budget aligns with these
plans and supports them.
Sustainability
The annual budget incorporates a long-term
perspective and should be affordable today
and in the future. The town’s budget must
be in compliance with the Municipal Act
and therefore needs to be balanced and
may not plan for a deficit. The use of onetime revenues shall not be incorporated
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into the town’s base budget and revenue
diversification should be maximized.
Interdependency
The operating and capital budgets must be
reviewed with a coordinated effort. It must
be recognized that capital expenditures,
financing decisions, and corporate strategies
will impact future operating budgets.
Affordability
The assumption of new assets and
infrastructure and the replacement of existing
assets must be well planned and appropriate
financing strategies and resources are to be
utilized to minimize the financial impact.
The town prepares multi-year operating
and 10-year capital forecasts to evaluate
the town’s ability to maintain existing
service levels, afford new programs, and
incorporate service levels changes and/or
new facilities. Innovative service delivery
strategies and available financing tools are
explored to ensure current and future tax
levies are maintained at manageable levels.
Fee for service
The town works to ensure that user fees
are utilized to cover costs of appropriate
services and are subject to annual review.
Management principles
The town’s goal is to maximize program
efficiencies while maintaining program
effectiveness. The annual budget focuses
on results and outcomes. The safeguarding
of the town’s assets and resources shall
be a key management objective. Town
management and staff review the numerous
programs provided by all departments in order
to ensure community needs are being met.
Operating budget controls
The town has adopted various policies that
allow departments to effectively manage
programs and services for which they are
accountable. These policies establish a
hierarchy of authority for any budgetary
adjustments. The general accountabilities
and allowable adjustments are as follows:

• Departmental services approved by Council
are carried out within the department’s
net expenditure approvals. Deviations from
this policy are reported to and reviewed
by the CAO or Council.
• Department heads/commissioners are
accountable to the treasurer, the CAO,
and Council for their spending, revenue
generation and service delivery performance
against budget approvals.
• Revenues received beyond the budgeted
levels shall not be spent or committed
without Council approval. At year-end,
such remaining revenues become part
of the town surplus.
• Reallocations between accounts that do
not affect the net operating budget of
a specific program may be made by a
department head and will be implemented
on an expenditure basis only.
• The transfer of approved budgets, of
the lessor of 10 per cent or $150,000
in respect of each reallocation between
programs within a department that do
not affect the net operating budget for
the department, shall require the approval
of the commissioner, the treasurer, and
the CAO. Any such reallocation shall be
reported as part of finance’s quarterly
variance report to Council. Reallocation of
approved budgets in excess of 10 per cent
or $150,000 requires Council approval.
• The transfer of approved budgets between
programs and/or services affecting the
net operating budget for a department
shall require the approval of the treasurer
and the CAO prior to seeking approval
of Council.
Capital budget controls
Similar to the operating budget controls, the
town has established general accountabilities
and controls for the capital budget process:
• Council, in adopting the capital budget,
shall determine the amounts required
for each capital project listed in the
capital budget.
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• The treasurer shall certify that debenture
funding for the capital projects in the
capital budget is within the town’s updated
financial obligation limit in relation to
allowable provincial levels
• All capital budgets and departmental
reports to Council seeking authority for
the release of funds and commencement
of the capital project or for amendments
to the capital program must first be
approved by the treasurer to ensure
accuracy, financing sources, and financial
impact, and then be reviewed by the
CAO before being submitted to Council
for approval.
• Similar to the operating budget, there
is a hierarchy of controls detailing how
project budgets may be amended.
Financial Operations Control
This policy sets out the basic principles
to ensure compliance and accountability
to financial by-laws and procedures and to
provide guidelines for departments, staff
and local boards with respect to financial
operational control.
The finance department is responsible
for developing, monitoring and ensuring
adherence to financial controls. This ensures
the integrity, accuracy and timeliness of data
which affect all assets, liabilities, expenses
and revenues of the town. This responsibility
extends to the auditable transaction data
which is available to departments and staff
to make evidence based decisions and to
support budget submissions.
Asset Management and Tangible
Capital Assets
The town has developed asset management
policies to assist in making the best possible
decisions regarding the town’s assets. This
is done in a way that provides targeted
levels of service and manages risk in a
cost-effective manner throughout the entire
asset life cycle in order to create customer
value through enhancing community asset
management. Maintaining the town’s

tangible capital assets is an important
component of asset management.
Amortization is calculated on a monthly basis
and is charged corporately. Departmental
budgets are not affected by amortization
as they are prepared on a “cash” basis for
tax levy purposes. As part of the budget
process, finance reports to Council how
much the estimated amortization expense
will be for the upcoming year, in compliance
with the Municipal Act, Regulation 284/09.
Through the monthly capital project review,
there is a linkage between the project and
the asset being constructed or purchased.
Once the asset is in service, the asset is
capitalized and the project closed. Assets
which are contributed to the town through
development agreements are unbudgeted;
however, they are included within tangible
capital assets and contributed revenue,
both of which are shown on the financial
statements.
Debt management
Council has adopted a policy that ensures
the annual debt repayment level is
significantly below the allowable Provincial
Government authorized level of 25 per
cent of operating revenues.
Council’s current approved policy stipulates
that debt repayments for tax-supported
debt are not to exceed 6.25 per cent of
operating revenues. In addition, total
debt repayments including debt that will
be recovered from non-tax sources are
not to exceed 12 per cent of operating
revenues. Finally, development supported
debt repayments are not to exceed 25
per cent of the projected annual average
development charge revenues. The town
is currently within these requirements.

2018 Town of Oakville Annual Report

Management’s Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the Town
of Oakville (the “town”) are the responsibility of the town’s management and have been
prepared in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards. A summary of the significant accounting policies are described in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The preparation of financial statements
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgment, particularly
when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with
certainty until future periods.
The town’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized
and recorded in compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable
financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by management.
The Administrative Services Committee meets with management and the external auditors to
review the consolidated financial statements and discuss any significant financial reporting
or internal control matters prior to their approval of the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, independent
external auditors appointed by the town. The accompanying Independent Auditors’
Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion
on the town’s consolidated financial statements.

Nancy Sully
Treasurer and Director of Finance

May 27, 2019

Jonathan van der Heiden
Deputy Treasurer and
Manager of Accounting
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KPMG LLP
Commerce Place
21 King Street West, Suite 700
Hamilton Ontario L8P 4W7
Canada

Telephone (905) 523 8200
Fax (905) 523 2222

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of The Corporation of the Town of Oakville
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Corporation of the Town of Oakville
(the “Entity), which comprise:
• the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018,
• the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended,
• the consolidated statement of change in net financial assets for the year then ended,
• the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
• and notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”)
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Entity as at December 31, 2018, and its consolidated results of operations, its consolidated
changes in net financial assets and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditors’ report.
We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.
KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International
Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the group Entity to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusion is based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
Opinion
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
•consolidated
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Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Hamilton,
Ontario, May 27, 2019
Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
May 27, 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017
(in thousands of dollars)

2018
Financial assets:

Cash
Accounts receivable (note 2)
Taxes receivable
Other
Investments (note 3)
Investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation (note 4)

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Other current liabilities
Deferred revenue – obligatory reserve funds (note 5)
Deferred revenue (note 6)
Long-term liabilities (note 7)
Contaminated sites (note 8)
Post-employment benefit liability (note 9(a))
WSIB liability (note 9(b))

Net financial assets

Non-financial assets:

Tangible capital assets (note 10)
Prepaid expenses and inventory

$

12,287

2017
$

18,009

19,768
32,523
388,221
224,594

17,830
31,937
397,440
215,651

677,393

680,867

45,476
26,690
100,363
37,866
117,788
616
30,566
2,643

43,508
24,961
116,874
35,963
119,549
3,016
27,687
2,554

362,008

374,112

315,385

306,755

1,675,646
3,946

1,624,343
3,719

1,679,592

1,628,062

$1,994,977

$1,934,817

Contingent liabilities and guarantees (note 14)
Accumulated surplus (note 11)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017
(In thousands of dollars)

Budget

2018

2017

Taxation revenue
$ 195,796
58,152
User fees and charges (note 12)
Government transfers:
301
Government of Canada (note 15)
2,854
Province of Ontario (note 15)
6,477
Gas tax revenue (note 15)
Other Municipalities
4,023
Investment income
11,841
Interest on promissory notes from Oakville
4,622
Enterprises Corporation (note 4 (b))
Penalties and interest
3,000
Developer contributions and charges earned 38,086
Other
435
Equity in income of Oakville Enterprises
5,500
Corporation (note 4)

$ 200,225
57,686

$ 188,307
60,300

4,156
1,373
7,988
7,731
11,143

2,565
873
6,810
5,733
11,023

4,624
3,325
58,566
849

4,624
3,234
95,919
1,224

15,443

11,288

331,087

373,109

391,900

31,911
45,753
56,538
1,430
3,807
59,606
17,291

51,588
47,219
99,647
8,078
4,124
81,253
21,040

37,365
46,952
100,420
6,086
4,127
74,289
21,852

Total expenses (note 16)

216,336

312,949

291,091

Annual surplus

114,751

60,160

100,809

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year

1,934,817

1,934,817

1,834,008

Accumulated surplus, end of year (note 11)

$ 2,049,568

$ 1,994,977

$ 1,934,817

(note 17)

Revenue:

Total revenue (note 16)

Expenses:

General government
Protection to persons and property
Transportation services
Environmental services
Health services
Recreation and cultural services
Planning and development

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Change
in Net Financial Assets
Year ended December 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017
(In thousands of dollars)

Budget

2018

2017

$ 60,160

$ 100,809

-

(98,764)
46,656
(1,429)
2,234
-

(133,847)
44,074
(5,438)
10,099
(3,746)

114,751

8,857

11,951

-

(3,946)

(3,719)

-

3,719

3,484

-

(227)

(235)

Change in net financial assets

114,751

8,630

11,716

Net financial assets, beginning of year

306,755

306,755

295,039

$ 421,506

$ 315,385

$ 306,755

(note 17)

Annual surplus

$ 114,751

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Gain on disposal of assets
Proceeds of disposition on tangible capital assets
Transfer to assets held for sale

Acquisition of prepaid expenses and inventory
Use of prepaid expenses and consumption
of inventory

Net financial assets, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017 (in thousands of dollars)

2018

2017

Annual surplus
$ 60,160
Items not involving cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets
46,656
Gain on disposal of assets
(1,429)
Developer contributions of tangible capital assets
(11,226)
Other municipalities contributions of tangible capital assets
(2,585)
Change in contaminated sites liability
(2,400)
Change in post-employment benefit liability
2,879
Change in WSIB liability
89
Equity in income of Oakville Enterprises Corporation
(15,443)
Change in non-cash assets and liabilities:
Taxes receivable
(1,938)
Other accounts receivable
(586)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
1,968
Other current liabilities
1,729
Deferred revenue – obligatory reserve fund
(16,511)
Deferred revenue
1,903
Prepaid expenses and inventory
(227)

$ 100,809

Cash provided by (used in):

Operating Activities:

Net change in cash from operating activities

44,074
(5,438)
(75,789)
(748)
1,942
103
(11,288)
(34)
(4,104)
764
1,009
26,023
(1,131)
(235)

63,039

75,957

(84,953)
2,234

(58,058)
10,099

(82,719)

(47,959)

9,219

(38,079)

500
6,000

459
5,900

15,719

(31,720)

6,100
(7,861)

6,693
(8,760)

Net change in cash from financing activities

(1,761)

(2,067)

Net change in cash

(5,722)

(5,789)

Cash, beginning of year

18,009

23,798

$ 12,287

$ 18,009

Capital Activities:

Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets
Proceeds of disposition of assets

Net change in cash from capital activities

Investing Activities:

Net change in investments
Decrease in direct financing lease receivable from
Oakville Enterprises Corporation
Dividend from Oakville Enterprises Corporation

Net change in cash from investing activities

Financing Activities:

Debt issued
Debt principal repayment

Cash, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2018 (in thousands of dollars)

The Corporation of the Town of Oakville (the “town”) is a municipality that provides
municipal services such as fire, public works, planning, parks and recreation, library and
other general government operations.
1. Significant accounting policies:
The consolidated financial statements of the town are prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants
of Canada. Significant accounting policies adopted by the town are as follows:
a. Basis of consolidation:
i. Consolidated entities
The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
of the reporting entity. The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations, committees
and local boards accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources
to the town and which are owned or controlled by the town except for the town’s
government business enterprises (Oakville Enterprises Corporation and Oakville Municipal
Development Corporation).
These entities and organizations include:
The Oakville Public Library Board
Downtown Oakville Business Improvement Area
Bronte Business Improvement Area
Kerr Village Business Improvement Area
Oakville Galleries
Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions and balances between these
entities and organizations have been eliminated.
ii. Investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation
The town’s investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation is accounted for on a
modified equity basis, consistent with Canadian public sector accounting standards
as recommended by PSAB for government business enterprises. Under the modified
equity basis, Oakville Enterprises Corporation accounting policies are not adjusted to
conform with those of the town and inter organizational transactions and balances
are not eliminated. The town recognizes its equity interest in the annual income or
loss of Oakville Enterprises Corporation in its consolidated statement of operations with
a corresponding increase or decrease in its investment asset account. Any dividends
that the town may receive from Oakville Enterprises Corporation will be reflected as
reductions in the investment asset account.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
a. Basis of consolidation (continued):
iii. Oakville Municipal Development Corporation
Oakville Municipal Development Corporation (“MDC”) is owned and controlled by
the town and as a government business enterprise is accounted for on the modified
equity basis in these consolidated financial statements. MDC serves to develop properties
within the boundaries of the town.
iv. Accounting for Region and School Board transactions
The taxation, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the
operations of Halton Region and the school boards are not reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.
v. Trust funds
Trust funds and their related operations administered by the town are not included in
these consolidated financial statements.
b. Basis of accounting:
The town follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses.
Revenues are recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable.
Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt
of goods or services and/or the creation of a legal obligation to pay.
c. Government transfers:
Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the financial statements when the
transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met and a reasonable estimate of the
amount can be made except when, and to the extent that, stipulations by the transferor
give rise to an obligation that meet the definition of a liability. Government transfers
that meet the definition of a liability are recognized as revenue as the liability is
extinguished.
d. Deferred revenue – obligatory reserve funds:
Deferred revenue – obligatory reserve funds represents development charge contributions,
payments in lieu of parkland and gas tax, levied or received under the authority of federal
and provincial legislation and town by-laws. These amounts have been collected but the
related services have yet to be performed. These amounts will be recognized as revenue in
the fiscal year the services are performed.
e. Deferred revenue:
Deferred revenue represents licenses, permits, grants and other fees which have been
collected, but for which the related services or inspections have yet to be performed.
These amounts will be recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the services are performed.
f. Investment income:
Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned. When required by the
funding government or related Act, investment income earned on deferred revenue is
added to deferred revenue and forms part of the deferred revenue balance.
g. Taxation revenue:
Taxes receivable and tax revenue are recognized when they meet the definition of
an asset, the tax is authorized and the taxable event has occurred.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
h. User fees:
User fees are recognized as revenue when the service is performed.
i. Investments:
Investments consist of bonds and debentures and are recorded at amortized cost.
Discounts and premiums arising on the purchase of these investments are amortized
over the term of the investments. When there has been a loss in value that is other
than a temporary decline in value, the respective investment is written down to
recognize the loss.
j. Net investment in direct financing leases receivable:
Investment income related to the town’s net investment in direct financing leases is
recognized in a manner that produces a constant rate of return on investment. The
investment in the leases is composed of net minimum remaining lease payments net
of unearned investment income.
k. Post-employment benefits:
i. The town provides certain employee benefits which will require funding in future
periods. These benefits include long-term disability benefits under the Workplace
Safety and Insurance Board (“WSIB”) Act, and extended health and dental benefits
for early retirees.
The costs of long-term disability, benefits under the Workplace Safety and Insurance
Board Act and extended health and dental benefits are actuarially determined using
management’s best estimate of salary escalation, earned days accumulated for certain
employees payable at retirement, health care cost trends, long term inflation rates
and discount rates.
For self-insured retirement and other employee future benefits that vest or accumulate
over the periods of service provided by employees, such as service payments and
health and dental benefits for retirees, the cost is actuarially determined using the
projected benefits method prorated on service. Under this method, the benefit costs
are recognized over the expected average service life of the employee group. Any
actuarial gains and losses related to the past service of employees are amortized over
the expected average remaining service life of the employee group.
For those self-insured benefit obligations that arise from specific events that occur from
time to time, such as obligations for workers’ compensation and life insurance and
health care benefits for those on disability leave, the cost is recognized immediately
in the period the events occur. Any actuarial gains and losses that are related to these
benefits are recognized immediately in the period they arise.
ii. The costs of multi-employer defined benefit pension plan benefits, such as the Ontario
Municipal Employees Retirement System (“OMERS”) pensions, are the employer’s
contributions due to the plan in the period. OMERS has been accounted for as a defined
contribution plan since it is a multi-employer plan.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
l. Non-financial assets:
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for
use in the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current
year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.
i. Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Asset

Useful Life (Years)

Land improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Roads Network
Environmental Network
Communications and Technology Services

3–100
10–75
3–19
3–18
10–100
10–100
3–8

Annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal. Assets
under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.
ii. Contributions of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date
of receipt and recognized as revenue.
iii. Natural resources
Natural resources that have not been purchased are not recognized as assets in the
consolidated financial statements.
iv. Works of art and cultural and historic assets
Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recognized as assets in these
consolidated financial statements.
v. Interest capitalization
The town does not capitalize interest costs associated with the acquisition or construction
of a tangible capital asset.
vi. Leased tangible capital assets
Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are accounted
for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as incurred.
vii. Inventories of supplies
Inventories of supplies held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost and
replacement cost.
m. Sinking funds:
Sinking funds and their related operations are administered by Halton Region and, as such,
are not included in these consolidated financial statements.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):
n. Contaminated sites:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

Contamination is a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds
an environmental standard. The liability is estimated based upon information that is
available when the financial statements are prepared. It is based upon the costs directly
attributable to the remediation activities required using a present value measurement
technique. The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for
remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when all the following criteria are met:
an environmental standard exists
contamination exceeds the environmental standard
the town is directly responsible or accepts responsibility
it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

o. Use of estimates:
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Significant estimates
include assumptions used in estimating provisions for accrued liabilities and the
contaminated sites liability and in performing actuarial valuations of post-employment
benefits liability and WSIB liability.
In addition, the town’s implementation of the Public Sector Accounting Handbook
PS3150 has required management to make estimates of historical cost and useful lives
of tangible capital assets.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.
2. Accounts receivable:
Taxes receivable are reported net of a valuation allowance of $2,815 (2017 – $2,815).
There is also a valuation allowance for general accounts receivable of $53 (2017 – $53).
3. Investments:
Investments reported on the consolidated statement of financial position have market
values of $386,594 (2017 – $404,923).
4. Investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation:
Oakville Enterprises Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Corporation”) is owned and controlled by the town and as a government business
enterprise is accounted for on the modified equity basis in these consolidated financial
statements. The Corporation serves as the electrical distribution utility for Oakville’s
residents and businesses. Other activities of the Corporation, and its subsidiaries, are to
provide energy services, generate electricity, energy efficient home comfort equipment
and services, billing services, street lighting maintenance services, retro fit multi
residential buildings to individually metered units and utility related construction
and power generation.

55

2018 Town of Oakville Annual Report

4. Investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation (continued):
The following tables provide condensed supplementary consolidated financial
information for the Corporation and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31:

Financial Position:
2018

2017

$ 92,815
317,901
11,148

$ 86,035
313,196
13,103

$ 421,864

$ 412,334

$ 68,429
8,996
77,029
59,032
54,981
15,372

$ 62,168
9,541
77,029
66,623
50,174
18,217

283,839

$ 283,752

63,024
76,942
(1,941)

63,024
67,972
(2,414)

138,025

128,582

$ 421,864

$ 412,334

$ 337,617
(324,733)
2,006

$ 339,072
(327,586)
(263)
468

Net income and net movement in regulatory balances
Other comprehensive income (loss)

14,890
553

11,691
(403)

Change in equity
Dividend paid to Town of Oakville

15,443
(6,000)

11,288
(5,900)

9,443
(500)

5,388
(459)

Assets:

Current
Capital
Regulatory balances

Total assets and regulatory balances

Liabilities:

Current
Capital lease obligations
Promissory notes payable to Town of Oakville
Long-term debt
Other
Regulatory balances

Total liabilities and regulatory balances

Equity:

Share capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total equity
Total liabilities, regulatory balances and equity

Operations:

Revenue
Expenses (including income tax provision)
Net income from discontinued operations
Net movement in regulatory balances (net of tax)

Direct financing lease receivable repayment
Change in investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation

$

8,943

$

4,929
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4. Investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation (continued):

Town of Oakville investment represented by:
2018

2017

Direct financing leases receivable (note 4 (a))
Promissory notes receivable (note 4 (b))
Investment in shares of the Corporation
Accumulated net income, net of dividends received

$

9,540
77,029
63,024
75,001

$ 10,040
77,029
63,024
65,558

Total investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation

$ 224,594

$ 215,651

a. Net investment in direct financing receivable:
The town has provided direct financing leases to the Corporation for the property
known municipality as 861 Redwood Square.
Minimum payments under this lease agreement are as follows:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

1,345
1,345
1,345
1,345
1,345
8,069
14,794

Less amount representing interest, imputed at 8.6%

(5,254)
$

9,540

b. Promissory notes:
The Corporation issued promissory notes to the town, effective February 1, 2000,
with principal repayment due on February 1, 2020. The town has the option on one
year’s prior written notice to the Corporation to revise the maturity date and any of
the terms of the promissory notes. At December 31, 2018, the interest rate in effect
on the promissory notes of $67,946 was 5.87% (2017 – 5.87%) and the promissory
note of $9,083 has an interest rate in effect of 7% (2017 – 7%). Interest revenue
earned from these notes totaled $4,624 (2017 – $4,624).
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4. Investment in Oakville Enterprises Corporation (continued):
c. Related party transaction and balances:
The following summarizes the town’s related party transactions and balances with the
Corporation for the years ended December 31:

Transactions:
Revenue:

Interest on promissory notes
Interest on direct financing leases
Garage services
Property taxes
Tree trimming services
Other

Expenses:

Energy purchases (at commercial rates)
Streetlight maintenance
Construction/locating
Rent

2018

2017

$ 4,624
934
400
456
520
77

$ 4,624
946
417
466
349
76

6,178
2,060
666
147

6,183
5,982
583
147

77,029
9,540
4,624
117

77,029
10,040
4,624
353

1,080

1,415

Balances:

Amounts due from the Corporation:
Promissory note receivable
Direct financing leases receivables
Interest on promissory note
Accounts receivable

Amounts due to the Corporation:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

d. Contingencies and guarantees of Oakville Enterprises Corporation:
Short term credit facilities disclosed in their financial statements
The Corporation has an uncommitted line of credit facility available for $37,000 with
a Canadian chartered bank. As at December 31, 2018 no amount was drawn on this
facility. In addition, the Corporation has a letter of credit facility available of $16,000
with a Canadian chartered bank, of which $14,921 has been assigned to secure its
primary source of electricity as required by the Independent Electricity System Operator
(“IESO”) Settlements Manual.
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5. Deferred revenue – obligatory reserve funds:
The deferred revenue – obligatory reserve funds, reported on the consolidated
statement of financial position, are made up of the following:

2018

2017

Development
Commuter
Charges Parkland Gas Tax
Cycling
Balance,
beginning of year
Developer and other
contributions
Interest earned
Provincial and
Federal funding

$ 63,225 $ 39,564 $ 14,085

$

Total

Total

- $116,874 $ 90,851

24,124
1,866

2,419
760

341

11

26,543
2,978

41,783
2,873

-

-

8,493

645

9,138

8,216

25,990

3,179

8,834

656

38,659

52,872

22,904

24,279

7,987

-

55,170

26,849

Less:

Contributions used
in operating and
capital funds

$ 66,311 $ 18,464 $ 14,932

$ 656 $100,363 $116,874

6. Deferred revenue:
The deferred revenue, reported on the consolidated statement of financial position,
is made up of the following:

2018
Deferred
revenues
capital
Balance,
beginning of year
Development Fees
User fees
Other

2017

Preauthorized
Deferred
tax
revenues
payments operations

Total

Total

$ 4,357

$ 17,037

$ 14,569

$ 35,963

$ 37,094

1,968
-

18,013

10,280
16,137
-

12,248
16,137
18,013

14,426
16,005
17,037

1,968

18,013

26,417

46,398

47,468

1,464

17,037

25,994

44,495

48,599

$ 4,861

$ 18,013

Less:

Amounts recognized
as revenue

$ 14,992 $ 37,866 $ 35,963
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7. Long-term liabilities:
a. The balance of long-term liabilities reported on the consolidated statement of
financial position is made up of the following:

2018

2017

$ 26,684

$ 26,210

The town has assumed responsibility for the payment
of the principal and interest charges on certain long-term
liabilities issued by Halton Region under the Ontario
Strategic Infrastructure Financing Authority (OSIFA) for
Pine Glen. This debt is being recovered from the Oakville
Soccer Club. Maturity dates are between 2019 and 2030
and the interest rate is 4.80%.

6,553

6,971

The town has assumed responsibility for the payment
of annual sinking fund deposits on long-term debentures
issued by Halton Region on behalf of the town with a
maturity date of April 6, 2045. Annual sinking fund
deposit requirements are $1,816. The interest rate on
the debentures is 3.15% and interest is payable in
semi-annual instalments of $1,418.

84,551

86,368

$ 117,788

$ 119,549

The town has assumed responsibility for the payment
of the principal and interest charges on certain long-term
serial debentures issued by Halton Region on behalf of the
town. Maturity dates vary from 2019 to 2028 and interest
rates range from 1.35% to 4.90%.

b. Principal repayments due over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2033
Thereafter

$

8,226
8,383
7,772
3,830
3,889
85,688

$ 117,788
The principal repayments include the annual sinking fund deposit requirement
of $1,816.
c. The long-term liabilities in (a) issued in the name of the town have been approved by
by-law. The annual principal and interest payments required to service these liabilities
are within the annual debt repayment limit prescribed by the Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing.
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7. Long-term liabilities (continued):
d. Total interest on long-term liabilities which are reported on the consolidated statement
of operations amounted to $4,065 (2017 – $4,194). The long-term liabilities bear
interest at rates ranging from 1.35% to 4.90%.
e. The balance of long-term liabilities reported on the consolidated statement of financial
position is funded from the following sources:
Tax levy supported
Development supported
Oakville Soccer Club
Harbours supported

2018

2017

$ 97,970
11,134
6,553
2,131

$ 95,466
14,595
6,971
2,517

$ 117,788

$ 119,549

8. Contaminated sites:
a. The town has recognized a liability of $616 (2017 – $3,016) for remediation of various
contaminated sites for which the town has assumed responsibility.
b. The future remediation costs and any post-remediation costs have an estimated
undiscounted cost of $620 and have been present valued using a discount rate of
2.75%. Estimates for these costs are based upon quotes provided by experts, the
town’s history with similar remediation efforts and/or management’s best estimates.
c. The amount of estimated recoveries is $Nil.
9. Employment benefits and other liabilities:
a. Post-employment benefit liability:
The town pays extended health and dental benefits for early retirees to age 65 as well
as for inactive employees. The town recognizes these post-employment costs in the
period in which the employees rendered the services. The accrued benefit liability and
the expense for the 12 months ended December 31, 2018 were determined by an
actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2016 and extrapolated to December 31, 2018.
The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuations are as follows:
i. Interest (discount rate):
The obligation as at December 31, 2018, of the present value of future liabilities, and
the expense for the 12 months ended December 31, 2018, were determined using a
discount rate of 3.75%.
ii. Medical costs:
Medical costs were assumed to increase at the rate of 8.0% in the first year after the
valuation date, reducing linearly to 4.0% after 10 years.
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9. Employment benefits and other liabilities (continued):
a. Post-employment benefit liability (continued):
iii. Dental costs:
Dental costs were assumed to increase at the rate of 4.0% per year.
Information about the town’s post-employment benefit liability is as follows:
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year
Current service costs
Change in obligation from experience
Plan improvements
Actuarial (gain)/ loss
Interest on accrued benefit obligation
Benefits paid during the period
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year
Unamortized actuarial loss
Accrued benefit liability, end of year

2018

2017

$ 30,434
1,576
(700)
932
(1,640)
1,001
(839)

$ 29,997
1,466
(1,913)
59
734
1,060
(969)

30,434

29,997

(198)

(2,747)

$ 30,566

$ 27,687

Included in current year costs is $210 (2017 – $324) for amortization of the actuarial
loss. The unamortized actuarial loss is amortized over the expected average remaining
service life of the employee group which ranges between 12.3 to 13.1 years.
b. WSIB:
With respect to responsibilities under provisions of the Workplace Safety and Insurance
Board (“WSIB”) Act the town has elected to be treated as a Schedule 2 employer and
remits payments to the WSIB as required to fund disability payments. An actuarial
estimate of future liabilities has been completed and forms the basis for the estimated
liability reported in these financial statements. The most recent actuarial valuation
was performed as at December 31, 2016, which includes an estimation of expected
costs and payments for 2017, 2018 and 2019, as well as a calculation of the actuarial
updates to December 31, 2017, 2018 and 2019.
The main actuarial assumptions employed for the valuation are as follows:
i. Interest (discount rate):
The obligation as at December 31, 2018, of the present value of future liabilities, and
the expense for the 12 months ended December 31, 2018, were determined using a
discount rate of 3.75%.
ii. Administration costs:
Administration costs were assumed to be 38.0% of the compensation expense.
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9. Employment benefits and other liabilities (continued):
b. WSIB (continued):
iii. Compensation expense:
Compensation costs, which include loss of earnings benefits, health care costs and
non-economic loss awards, were assumed to increase at rates ranging from 1.25%
to 2.00% depending on the benefit type.
Information about the town’s WSIB liability is as follows:
Accrued WSIB obligation, beginning of year
Current service costs
Interest on accrued benefit obligation
Benefits paid during the period
Accrued WSIB obligation, end of year
Unamortized actuarial loss
Accrued WSIB liability, end of year

2018

2017

$ 2,819
387
106
(347)

$ 2,681
375
101
(338)

2,965

2,819

(322)

(265)

$ 2,643

$ 2,554

Included in current service costs is $57 (2017 – $35) for amortization of the actuarial
gain. The unamortized actuarial loss on future payments required to WSIB is amortized
over the expected period of the liability which is 10 years.
c. Other pension plans:
The town makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund
(OMERS), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of 1,325 members of its staff. The
plan is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to
be received by the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. OMERS
is reporting a funding deficit of $4,200,000 (2017 – $5,400,000) in 2018.
Contributions for employees with a normal retirement age of 65 were being made at
a rate of 9.0% for earnings up to the yearly maximum pensionable earnings of $57.4
and at a rate of 14.6% for earnings greater than the yearly maximum pensionable
earnings.
The amount contributed to OMERS by the Town of Oakville for 2018 was $11,127
(2017 – $10,917). Employee contributions to OMERS for 2018 totaled $11,127
(2017 – $10,917).
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10. Tangible capital assets
2018
Land

Land
Improvements

Vehicles

Roads
Network

Environmental
Network

Comm
& Tech Work in
Services Progress

Buildings Equipment

$736,659

$255,143

$300,954

$33,167

$78,580

$589,959

$305,955

$30,897

22,521

9,015

40,739

2,531

10,681

9,594

4,284

3,624

83,331

186,320

(349)

(987)

-

(1,410)

(4,414)

(713)

(16)

(1,836)

(87,556)

(97,281)

758,831

263,171

341,693

34,288

84,847

598,840

310,223

32,685

32,701

2,457,279

-

196,387
5,862

99,205
6,962

15,668
3,012

42,949
6,796

281,404
15,881

90,378
4,451

17,906
3,692

-

743,897
46,656

-

(803)

-

(1,394)

(4,404)

(477)

(7)

(1,835)

-

(8,920)

-

201,446

106,167

17,286

45,341

296,808

94,822

19,763

-

781,633

$758,831

$ 61,725

$235,526

$17,002

$39,506 $302,032

$215,401

$12,922

Environmental
Network

Comm
& Tech Work in
Services Progress

Total

Asset Cost
Balance,
beginning of year
Add: Additions
during the year
Less: Disposals
during the year
Balance, end of year

$36,926 $2,368,240

Accumulated Amortization
Balance,
beginning of year
Add: Amortization
Less: Accumulated
amortization on
disposals
Balance,
end of year
Net book value,
end of year

$32,701 $1,675,646

2017
Land

Land
Improvements

Buildings Equipment

Vehicles

Roads
Network

$684,016

$249,216

$301,670

$29,740

$76,410

$562,629

$292,724

$26,769

52,691

7,857

73

5,459

5,208

30,185

13,272

5,920

58,396

179,061

(48)

(1,930)

(789)

(2,032)

(3,038)

(2,855)

(41)

(1,792)

(44,443)

(56,968)

736,659

255,143

300,954

33,167

78,580

589,959

305,955

30,897

36,926

2,368,240

-

192,132
5,741

93,289
6,689

14,585
2,921

39,512
6,336

268,907
14,526

86,055
4,345

16,182
3,516

-

710,662
44,074

-

(1,486)

(773)

(1,838)

(2,899)

(2,029)

(22)

(1,792)

-

(10,839)

-

196,387

99,205

15,668

42,949

281,404

90,378

17,906

-

743,897

$736,659

$ 58,756

$201,749

$17,499

$35,631 $308,555

$215,577

$12,991

Total

Asset Cost
Balance,
beginning of year
Add: Additions
during the year
Less: Disposals
during the year
Balance, end of year

$22,973 $2,246,147

Accumulated Amortization
Balance,
beginning of year
Add: Amortization
Less: Accumulated
amortization on
disposals
Balance,
end of year
Net book value,
end of year

$36,926 $1,624,343
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10. Tangible capital assets (continued):
a. Assets under construction:
Assets under construction having a value of $32,701 (2017 – $36,926) have not been
amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put into service.
b. Contributed tangible capital assets:
Contributed capital assets have been recognized at fair value at the date of contribution.
The value of contributed assets received during the year is $13,811 (2017 – $75,789)
comprised of road networks in the amount of $6,674 (2017 – $11,373); environmental
network in the amount of $2,903 (2017 – $12,038); land improvements in the amount
of $174 (2017 – $286), equipment in the amount of $nil (2017 – $173) and land
in the amount of $1,475 (2017 – $51,919), and buildings in the amount of $2,585
(2017 – $nil).
c. Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values:
Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was
recognized at a nominal value. Land under roads, cemetery lands and buildings slated
for demolition are the only assets where nominal values were assigned.
d. Works of art and historical treasures:
The town manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical
cultural assets including buildings, artifacts, paintings and sculptures located at town
sites and public display areas. These assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets
and are not amortized.
e. Write-down of tangible capital assets:
No tangible capital assets were written down during the year.
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11. Accumulated surplus:
Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves and reserve
funds as follows:

Surplus:

Invested in tangible capital assets
Other
Equity in Oakville Enterprises Corporation
Unfunded:
Contaminated sites
Post-employment benefits and WSIB
Long-term liabilities

Reserves set aside for specific purposes
by Council for:
Tax rate stabilization
Capital financing
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Working capital
Insurance

Reserve funds set aside for specific purposes
by Council:
Post-employment benefits and WSIB
Street trees
Conservation purposes
Harbors
Library development
Building, ground maintenance and replacement
Parking
Bonus zoning

2018

2017

$ 1,675,646
64,545
224,594

$ 1,624,343
51,426
215,651

(616)
(33,209)
(117,788)

(3,016)
(30,241)
(119,549)

1,813,172

1,738,614

40,800
46,030
19,357
38,968
1,123

36,256
58,772
19,050
41,027
1,183

146,278

156,288

19,242
301
167
(5,609)
707
13,836
4,676
2,207

17,742
293
241
(643)
633
15,601
3,883
2,165

35,527

39,915

$ 1,994,977

$ 1,934,817
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12. User fees and charges:
User fees and charges include the following:
Development fees and miscellaneous
Transit revenues
Parking, Provincial Offences Act and other fines
Town facilities rental and usage fees
Recreation and cultural program revenues
Cemeteries
Licenses and permits

2018

2017

$ 8,805
9,037
5,209
10,995
11,303
1,102
11,235

$ 9,310
8,411
4,951
9,981
10,787
950
15,910

$ 57,686

$ 60,300

13. Trust funds:
Trust funds administered by the town amounting to $5,952 (2017 – $5,770) have
not been included in the consolidated statement of financial position nor have their
operations been included in the consolidated statement of operations.
14. Contingent liabilities and guarantees:
a. Litigation:
The town has been named as defendant in certain legal actions in which damages
have been sought. The exact outcome of these actions is not determinable, as at the
date of reporting, however, provisions have been made for those legal actions where
it is likely the town may at some future date be held liable.
b. Cemeteries Act:
The Cemeteries Act (Revised), R.S.O., 1990, requires the town to assume ownership
and responsibility for the continuing care of pioneer and abandoned cemeteries.
However, the Cemeteries Act does not address the issue of funding for this obligation,
other than to provide that any assets, funds and trust accounts, if they exist, become
the property of the municipality at the time the ownership is assumed. This potential
liability cannot be quantified at this time and no provision has been included in these
financial statements.
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14. Contingent liabilities and guarantees (continued):
c. Guarantees:
i. The town, on occasion, has provided indemnities under lease agreements for the use
of various operating facilities. Under the terms of these agreements the town agrees
to indemnify the counterparties for various items including, but not limited to, all
liabilities, loss, suits, and damages arising during, on or after the term of the agreement.
The maximum amount of any potential future payment cannot be reasonably estimated.
ii. The town has purchased errors and omissions insurance to mitigate the costs of
any potential future suits or actions. The term of the indemnification is not explicitly
defined, but is limited to the period over which the indemnified party served as an
officer, an employee, a volunteer or member of Council, Board, Commission or
Committee of the town. The maximum amount of any potential future payment
cannot be reasonably estimated.
iii. In the normal course of business, the town, on occasion, has entered into
agreements that include indemnities in favour of third parties, such as purchase and
sale agreements, confidentiality agreements, engagement letters with advisors and
consultants, outsourcing agreements, leasing contracts, information technology
agreements and service agreements. These indemnification agreements may require
the town to compensate counterparties for losses incurred by the counterparties as a
result of breaches in representation and regulations or as a result of litigation claims
or statutory sanctions that may be suffered by the counterparty as a consequence
of the transaction. The terms of these indemnities are not explicitly defined and the
maximum amount of any potential reimbursement cannot be reasonably estimated.
The nature of these indemnification agreements prevents the town from making a
reasonable estimate of the maximum exposure due to the difficulties in assessing the
amount of liability which stems from the unpredictability of future events and the
unlimited coverage offered to counterparties. Historically, the town has not made any
significant payments under such or similar indemnification agreements and therefore
no amount has been accrued in the financial statements with respect to these
agreements.
iv. The town has a credit facility for $500 for the purpose of issuing letters of credit
mainly to support requirements of the Department of Fisheries and Oceans Canada,
of which $nil has been drawn.
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15. Government and external transfers:
The government transfers reported on the Consolidated Statement of Operations are:

2018

2017

Revenue:
Federal grants:

Federal gas tax
Public Transit Infrastructure Fund
Clean Water and Wastewater Fund
Canada council
Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program
Young Canada Works, Summer Jobs
Canadian heritage grant
Economic Development Grant
Library

Ontario grants:

Ontario gas tax
Clean Water and Wastewater Fund
Library – operating grant
Main Street Revitalization
Ontario arts council
Elderly Person’s Centres
Communities in action and zero tolerance
Museum – operating grant
Celebrate Ontario
Ontario 150
Trillium grant
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

$

4,504
2,543
1,042
211
167
94
63
25
11

$

4,007
1,848
91
200
152
117
157
-

8,660

6,572

3,484
521
207
201
140
120
60
58
25
21
20
-

2,803
45
182
113
116
42
58
25
134
43
115

4,857

3,676

$ 13,517

$ 10,248
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15. Government and external transfers (continued):
The external transfers reported on the Consolidated Statement of Operations are:

2018

2017

$ 287
163
85
39
8
3

$ 255
138
83
35
8
3

585

522

100
60
33
15
15
14
10
4

100
71
33
50
15
11
1
14

251

295

$ 836

$ 817

Expenses:

Recreational & cultural grants:
Recreational program subsidization
Theatre groups subsidization
Oakville Arts Council
Sport development grant
Historical Society
Oakville Lawn Bowling
Other:
Oakville Tourism Partnership
Heritage grants
T.O.W.A.R.F.
Bronte B.I.A. – Canada Day
Kerr Village BIA – Fall Fest
Kerr St. Façade Improvement Program
Other
Accessibility costs

Total external transfers
16. Segment information:

The town is a diversified lower tier municipal government that provides a wide range
of services to its citizens, including fire, public transit, roads and works operations,
engineering and construction, parks, recreation, culture, planning, development and
building services. Segmented information has been identified based on lines of service
provided by the town. These lines of service have been separately disclosed in the
segmented information, along with the services they provide, are as follows:
i. Governance and Corporate Services:
Reported in the General Government functional area, it covers those departments
responsible for Political Governance (Council, Clerks), Administrative Executive
Management (CAO, Internal Audit, Strategy, Policy and Communications), Corporate
Services (Financial Services, Human Resources, Legal Services, Information Systems,
Facilities & Construction Management) and those expenses and revenues which are
truly corporate in nature and cannot be easily apportioned to one department over
another, such as investment income and penalties and interest on overdue taxes.
Also, any tax revenue required to cover debt principal repayments, transfers to capital
and reserves/reserve funds, has been allocated to this area.
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16. Segment information (continued):
ii. Fire:
The mandate of Fire is to provide emergency services through a range of services to
protect the lives and property of the inhabitants of Oakville from the adverse effects
of fires, sudden medical and non-medical emergencies including, but not limited to,
exposure to dangerous conditions brought on by natural, technological or humancaused events. The main objectives are to prevent fires, educate the public with
regards to fire related risks, to enforce fire safety standards, fight and suppress fires
and to plan and respond to all emergencies throughout the town.
iii. Building Services:
The mandate of Building Services is to inform and assist customers to ensure safe and
orderly development and provide efficient delivery of building approvals, inspections
and management systems. The Building Services department is for the most part, an
enforcement agency, enforcing both Provincial and Municipal regulations. Provincially,
the department enforces the Ontario Building Code to ensure that all construction
within the municipality meets the minimum standard required ensuring life safety
for all residents, businesses and workers that choose to live and/or work in Oakville.
Municipally, the department enforces the local zoning regulations which are designed
to ensure that development within the municipality conforms to the regulations
designed to create the most livable town in Canada.
iv. Parks, Recreation and Culture:
The mandate for Parks is a commitment to ensuring a diverse range of open space
opportunities that preserves and enhances the quality of life for present and future
generations. This will be accomplished by protecting and enhancing the town’s
heritage and environment, facilitating community partnerships and providing effective
efficient services through a dedicated and professional staff. This service is responsible
for the provision of the parks and open space program, which provides the residents
with day-to-day maintenance for the town’s parks and open space system, as well as
undertaking the planning and construction of new parkland and open space. Parks &
Open Spaces is also responsible for the operation of the Oakville Harbours, Forestry
Operations and Cemeteries.
The mandate of Recreation and Culture is to provide a diverse range of recreational
opportunities that preserve and enhance the quality of life for present and future
generations which are innovative and accessible to all residents and meet the diverse
needs of a changing community. They are responsible for the effective delivery of
the recreation services program, including direct program delivery, the provision of
facilities and internal departmental and corporate support as well as the support of
groups and organizations throughout the town in the delivery of services to their
members. This program is provided through the provision of administration, recreation
programs, support services and facilities. The Recreation and Cultural Department
also provides management and programming of the Oakville Museum and the
Oakville Centre for Performing Arts.
Included in this area is also Oakville Public Library Board operations and Oakville
Galleries.
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16. Segment information (continued):
v. Roads and Works and Engineering:
The mandate of Roads and Works is to provide quality road, traffic and water resource
systems maintenance and operations to the residents and businesses of the town. This
program is responsible for the maintenance and operation of the town’s transportation
and water resources system. This area is also responsible for winter control for the
town and Halton Region.
The Engineering section manages the infrastructure planning and improvements
program which provides for the detailed planning, design and construction of the
town’s transportation and water resources infrastructure programs. Through cost
effective and responsible means, it involves environmental assessments, studies,
public and agency consultations, engineering designs and approvals, tendering
and administration for projects and services including roads and traffic, bridges
and culverts, sidewalks and cycle ways, storm drainage, storm water management,
creek channels and shoreline protection. This department is also responsible for the
provision of parking and parking enforcement.
vi. Transit:
The mandate of Transit is to provide safe, reliable, convenient and efficient public
transit services within the urban area. This program is responsible for designing and
delivering a range of transit services within the urban boundaries of the town.
vii. Planning, Development and Economic Development:
The mandate of Planning Services area is to strive for excellence in creating a livable
community for present and future generations. This program creates the policy
framework and implementation tools required to shape the future of the community.
The mandate of Development Services is to ensure that new urban public infrastructure,
built through the development processes, meets or exceeds the town’s standards and
requirements. They are responsible for ensuring that the town’s land development
standards are achieved on all development applications.
The mandate of Economic Development area is to create a balanced environment
that fosters economic growth, job creation and live/work opportunities. This program
has a number of functions that involve the local business community as well as other
stakeholders within and outside of Oakville. Collectively, these functions work to
build a positive economic environment that result in business retention, expansion
and attraction, which will drive assessment and job growth in the town.
Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented
financial information. Taxation and payments-in-lieu of taxes are allocated to the
segments based on the segment’s budgeted net expenditure. User charges and
other revenue have been allocated to the segments based upon the segment that
generated the revenue. Government transfers have been allocated to the segment
based upon the purpose for which the transfer was made. Development charges
earned and developer contributions received were allocated to the segment for
which the charge was collected.
The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in Note 1.
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16. Segment information (continued):
2018
Governance
Corporate
Services

Parks,
Roads
Building Recreation
& Works
Fire Services & Culture Engineering

Planning,
Development
& Economic
Other
Transit Development Services

Total

Revenue:
Taxation
$ 39,165 $ 36,434
Ontario grants
Canada grants
Gas tax revenues
Other Municipalities
2,743
Oakville Enterprises
4,624
User fees and service charges
3,995
211
Investment income
10,811
Penalties and interest
3,325
Developer contributions and
development charges earned
3,897
782
Equity in Income in
Oakville Enterprises
15,443
Other
(226)
-

$ 1,349
9,264
-

$ 57,617
614
401
531
23,312
332
-

$ 36,798
734
1,195
4,504
4,457
5,560
-

$ 22,994
2,528
3,484
9,039
-

-

17,370

19,546

-

578

$

4,064
25
6,052
-

$1,804
25
7
253
-

$ 200,225
1,373
4,156
7,988
7,731
4,624
57,686
11,143
3,325

559

16,412

-

58,566

461

-

36

-

15,443
849

83,777

37,427

10,613

100,755

73,255

38,604

26,589

2,089

373,109

31,710
9
(753)
17,615
307
164
3,978
(1,442)

32,157
394
2,540
56
1,683
(52)

6,708
40
3,692
1
-

42,531
3,749
6,752
26,584
441
1,064
11,609
156

16,371
240
6,144
23,399
91
473
23,844
(92)

20,861
67
5,482
4,586
9
773
5,482
(5)

8,129
51
3,136
91
173
7
6

520
1,366
52
-

158,987
4,065
18,110
82,918
939
2,703
46,656
(1,429)

51,588

36,778

10,441

92,886

70,470

37,255

11,593

1,938

312,949

$ 7,869

$ 2,785

$ 1,349

$ 14,996

$ 151

$ 60,160

Expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits
Debt expense
Materials
Contracted services
Rents and financial expenses
External transfers
Amortization
(Gain)/loss on disposal of assets

Annual surplus

$ 32,189

$

649

$

172
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16. Segment information (continued):
2017
Governance
Corporate
Services

Planning,
Development
& Economic
Other
Transit Development Services

Parks,
Roads
Building Recreation
& Works
Fire Services & Culture Engineering

Total

Revenue:
Taxation
$ 33,622
Ontario grants
Canada grants
Gas tax revenues
Other Municipalities
70
Oakville Enterprises
4,624
User fees and service charges
3,266
Investment income
10,642
Penalties and interest
3,234
Developer contributions and
development charges earned
52,361
Equity in Income in
Oakville Enterprises
11,288
Other
97

$ 35,441
247
-

$ 1,390
14,376
-

$ 52,426
727
541
985
21,655
380
-

$ 37,104
96
105
3,768
4,678
5,414
-

$ 23,946
1,837
3,042
8,413
-

24

-

12,938

29,981

19

-

394

119,204

35,731

15,766

28,526
12
(65)
11,165
320
138
3,870
(6,601)

32,158
494
2,687
33
1,657
(9)

37,365
$ 81,839

$

2,597
6,631
-

$1,781
50
82
298
1
-

$ 188,307
873
2,565
6,810
5,733
4,624
60,300
11,023
3,234

299

316

-

95,919

714

-

-

-

11,288
1,224

90,046

81,860

37,537

9,544

2,212

391,900

6,294
42
3,595
1
-

39,842
3,951
6,860
23,279
454
689
11,200
424

16,113
147
5,403
23,908
71
482
22,213
613

20,304
84
4,842
6,415
9
673
5,083
146

7,942
48
3,254
182
7
(11)

412
1,692
43
-

151,591
4,194
17,624
75,995
854
2,197
44,074
(5,438)

37,020

9,932

86,699

68,950

37,556

11,422

2,147

291,091

$ (1,289)

$ 5,834

$ 3,347

$ 12,910
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$ 100,809

Expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits
Debt expense
Materials
Contracted services
Rents and financial expenses
External transfers
Amortization
(Gain)/loss on disposal of assets

Annual surplus (deficit)

$

(19)

$

(1,878)

$
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17. Budget data:
The audited budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements
is based upon the 2018 operating and capital budgets approved by Council on
December 18, 2017. Amortization and post-employment liabilities were not
contemplated on development of the budget and, as such, have not been included.
The chart below reconciles the approved budget to the budget figures reported in
these consolidated financial statements.

Budget Amount
Revenue:

Operating budget
Capital budget
BIA’s

Less:

Internal revenues and recoveries
Transfers from other funds

Total revenue

Expenses:

Operating budget
Capital budget
BIA’s

Less:

Internal expenses
Transfers to other funds
Capital expenses
Debt principal payments

$ 323,732
128,370
1,984
(25,939)
(97,060)
331,087
323,732
128,370
1,978
(25,939)
(75,477)
(128,886)
(7,442)

Total expenses

216,336

Annual surplus

$ 114,751

18. Comparative figures:
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial
statement presentation adopted in the current year.
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Five Year Review (unaudited)
2018
Demographics

***

Population at the end of the year

211,000

Number of Households
Staff Complement (including Library)
Approved Continuous Full-time
Approved Part-time (FTE)
Building Permits — Issued
New residential units
Total residential construction value
Total construction value — all types
of permits

Taxable weighted assessment (000’s)
Residential, multi-residential and farm
Commercial — all classes
Industrial — all classes
Pipeline & Managed Forests

2017
201,200

2016
***

2015

2014

193,832

* ***

191,366

* **

187,300

***

* ***

66,489

* **

65,710

73,164

72,893 •

66,269

1,211
418

1,198
404

1,192
403

1,155
401

1,144
397

752
$450 M

1,843
$871 M

955
$545 M

1,680
$599 M

851
$464 M

$697 M

$1,234 M

$913 M

$825 M

$964 M

48,586,278 44,342,608
6,143,103 5,709,774
1,012,658
977,971
69,138
63,983

***

40,751,656 37,987,208 35,553,848
5,432,645 5,146,354 4,774,944
944,134
940,947
910,354
61,113
59,482
58,210

55,811,177 51,094,336 47,189,548 44,133,991 41,297,356
Commercial and industrial as a
percentage of taxable assessment
Exempt Assessment

Taxes levied on behalf of (000’s)

13.09%

13.51%

13.79%

13.77%

3,115,700

2,508,859

2,544,989

2,266,876

2,052,541

191,650
171,904
145,424

182,228
164,509
140,224

173,867
158,843
136,126

165,118
152,712
132,260

162,147
149,756
130,802

508,978

486,961

468,836

450,090

442,705

518,831

492,157

473,210

454,852

440,662

2.51%
1.90%
0.21%
1.78%

3.63%
2.47%
0.20%
2.42%

2.36%
1.85%
0.00%
1.60%

2.74%
1.60%
0.00%
1.60%

2.07%
0.00%
0.00%
0.70%

•

Town of Oakville — includes Business
Improvement Areas
Region of Halton
School Boards (Public & Separate)

Taxes collected

Annual % budgeted tax change —
residential only
Town of Oakville
Region of Halton
School Boards (Public & Separate)
Overall % Budgeted Tax Increase

12.82%

* Adjusted for end of year calculation, ** 2016 Census, *** Town of Oakville Growth Tracking Model, updated semi-annually,
prepared by Watson and Associates Ltd., • Municipal Property Assessment Corporation, • not including supplementary taxes.
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Operations Expenses & Revenues

Expenses by Function

General Government
Protection to Persons & Property
Transportation Services
Environmental Services
Health Services
Recreation and Cultural Services
Planning and Development

Expenses by Object

Salaries, wages & employee benefits
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Materials, Services & Financial Expenses
Transfers to Others
Amortization Expense
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of tangible
capital assets

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

51,588
47,219
99,647
8,078
4,124
81,253
21,040

37,365
46,952
100,420
6,086
4,127
74,289
21,852

40,148
44,468
93,966
8,952
4,032
72,213
21,322

142,679
43,104
86,028
6,425
4,235
73,742
19,495

27,781
40,703
79,081
5,024
1,159
71,337
23,251

312,949

291,091

285,101

375,708

248,336

158,987
4,065
101,967
2,703
46,656

151,591
4,194
94,473
2,197
44,074

147,242
4,355
89,643
2,321
42,799

140,451
3,871
186,876
2,059
42,846

131,600
2,047
73,990
2,232
42,128

(1,429)

(5,438)

(1,259)

(395)

(3,661)

312,949

291,091

285,101

375,708

248,336

200,225
57,686
4,857
8,660
7,731
11,143

188,307
60,300
3,676
6,572
5,733
11,023

178,952
55,749
4,463
5,228
4,514
10,241

172,437
51,511
2,491
7,649
4,230
10,977

164,552
54,170
8,297
6,465
3,669
10,931

4,624
3,325

4,624
3,234

4,624
3,337

4,624
3,362

4,624
3,292

59,415
15,443

97,143
11,288

77,949
13,433

99,384
5,660

44,359
6,021

373,109

391,900

358,490

362,325

306,380

60,160

100,809

73,389

(13,383)

58,044

1,994,977

1,934,817

1,834,008

1,760,619

1,774,002

315,385

306,755

295,039

267,685

372,752

Revenues by Source

Taxation (includes Supplementary &
Payments in Lieu)
Fees and service charges
Province of Ontario - Grants/Subsidies
Other Grants i.e. Canada
Other Municipalities
Investment Income
Oakville Hydro - Interest on
Promissory Notes
Penalty & Interest on taxes
Developer contributions, development
charges earned & miscellaneous
Equity in Oakville Hydro

Annual Surplus/(Deficit)
Accumulated Surplus, end of the year
Net Financial Assets
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Tangible Capital Assets By Class

Net Book Value

Land
Land Improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Vehicles
Roads Networks
Environmental Network
Communication & Technical Services
Capital Works in Progress

Additions and Disposals

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

758,831
61,725
235,526
17,002
39,506
302,032
215,401
12,922
32,701

736,659
58,756
201,749
17,499
35,631
308,555
215,577
12,991
36,926

684,016
57,084
208,381
15,155
36,898
293,722
206,669
10,587
22,973

648,176
57,304
214,316
15,111
35,297
293,071
202,078
10,832
13,935

574,552
55,523
220,834
15,260
31,716
278,463
189,275
8,259
24,115

1,675,646

1,624,343

1,535,485

1,490,120 1,397,997

TCA Assets - beginning of year
Additions
Disposals

2,368,240 2,246,147 2,168,177 2,042,839 2,012,013
186,320
179,061
129,912
206,864
52,401
(97,281)
(56,968)
(51,942)
(81,526)
(21,575)

TCA Assets - end of year

2,457,279

2,368,240

2,246,147

2,168,177 2,042,839

Accumulated Amortization

Accumulated Amortization beginning of year
Current year expense
Accumulated amortization on disposals

743,987
46,656
(8,920)

710,662
44,074
(10,839)

678,057
42,799
(10,194)

644,842
42,846
(9,631)

613,852
42,128
(11,138)

Accumulated Amortization - end of year

781,633

743,897

710,662

678,057

644,842

1,675,646

1,624,343

1,535,485

Net Book Value

1,490,120 1,397,997
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Capital Costs and Financing

Expenses by Function

General Government
Protection to Persons & Property
Transportation Services
Environmental Services
Health Services
Recreation and Cultural Services
Planning and Development

Financing by Source

Transfers from Own Funds
Long-term Debt/Internal Borrowing
Grants/Subsidies - Federal/Provincial
Other

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

17,153
2,498
35,202
5,786
57
59,468
21,171

12,978
1,178
43,422
1,258
151
35,039
6,023

17,268
630
38,434
659
130
18,060
5,410

136,953
1,885
37,886
958
125
16,525
4,807

5,821
3,745
27,676
795
100
15,665
3,563

141,335

100,049

80,591

199,139

57,365

146,124
6,100
4,544
1,317

107,296
6,693
2,266
599

85,413
29
2,258

110,514
90,000
111
1,822

50,922
197
1,782

158,085

116,854

87,700

202,447

52,901

Note: The Town of Oakville has implemented Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) section 3150 which requires governments
to record and amortize their tangible capital assets in their financial statements. In prior years, tangible capital asset additions were
expensed in the year of acquisition or construction. We still track all capital related expenses in the Capital Fund, however we do
not report by fund accounting on the statements.

Discretionary Reserves and Reserve Funds and Obligatory Reserve Funds
Discretionary Reserves *
Discretionary Reserve Funds *
Obligatory Reserve Funds **
Development Charges
Parkland
Gas Tax
Commuter Cycling

146,278
35,528

156,288
39,915

162,732
38,026

157,566
37,931

138,902
78,986

66,311
18,464
14,932
656

63,225
39,564
14,085
-

38,828
39,647
12,376
-

20,227
41,728
12,617
-

3,348
32,834
13,938
-

Total - Reserves & Reserve Funds

282,169

313,077

291,609

270,069

268,008

* Reference - Note 11 in the 2016 Financial Statements for more details. ** Reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position as “Deferred Revenue - obligatory reserve funds”in compliance with PSAB reporting requirements.
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Long-Term Debt
2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

(000’s)

13,418
84,551

9,098
86,367

6,055
88,184

8,065
90,000

10,375
-

11,135
2,131
6,553

14,595
2,518
6,971

18,919
1,088
7,370

23,300
1,546
7,751

27,415
1,986
8,114

117,788

119,549

121,616

130,662

47,890

6,777
5,149

6,728
6,227

7,139
6,259

4,736
6,361

3,691
6,343

Total Annual Debt Repayment

11,926

12,955

13,398

11,097

10,034

Tax Levy Supported Debt Annual Repayment –
Per Capita

$32.12

$33.44

$36.83

$24.75

$17,42

$558

$594

$627

$683

$256

25%

25%

25%

25%

25%

12%
6.25%

12%
6.25%

12%
6.25%

12%
6.25%

12%
6.25%

4.35%
2.47%

5.09%
2.65%

5.50%
2.93%

4.64%
1.98%

4.60%
1.69%

Long-Term Liabilities (Debt)

Tax Levy Supported Debt
Tax Levy Supported Hospital Debt
Self Supported Debt
Development Charges Supported Debt
Oakville Harbours Supported Debt
Oakville Soccer Club Supported Debt

Annual Repayment Charges for LongTerm Liabilities - Principal & Interest

Tax Levy Supported Debt Annual Repayment
Self Supported Debt Annual Repayment

Total Long-term Debt – Per Capita

Debt Repayment Policy % Limits–
As a % of Revenue Fund Revenues *

Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing’s Policy

Town of Oakville’s Policy % Limits

Total Annual Debt Repayment
Tax Levy Support Debt Repayment

Actual %

Total Annual Debt Repayment
Tax Levy Supported Debt Repayment

* “Revenue Fund Revenues” - Ministry calculation requires that all grant funding and revenue from other municipalities be excluded.

Principal Corporate Tax Payers
• Riocan Holdings (Oakville Place Inc)
• Ford Motor Company
• 2121049 Ontario Limited
• Silgold Developments Inc
• Oakville Entertainment Holdings Inc

• 2725321 Canada Inc
• Suncor Energy Inc
• Calloway Reit (Hopedale) Inc
• The Great West Life Assurance Company
• Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada

Town of Oakville
1225 Trafalgar Road Oakville, Ontario
905-845-6601 | oakville.ca

